
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 26, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Meeting 

November 26, 2019, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Action Memorandum No. 19-088: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Kenneth More,
Shannon Jardine, and Christopher Shayne Reese for Appointment to the Airport Advisory
Commission with Terms Ending December 31, 2022, and the Nomination of Leighton Lee for
Appointment to the Seat with a Term Ending December 31, 2021 ............................ Page 3 

b. Action Memorandum No. 19-089: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Peter Christopher
and Janet Kincaid for Appointment to the Board of Economic Development with Terms Ending
December 31, 2022, and the Nomination of Ronalee Moses for Appointment to the Seat with a
Term Ending December 31, 2020 .......................................................................... Page 5 

c. Action Memorandum No. 19-090: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Shannon Connelly
and Marilyn Bennett for Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Board with Terms Ending
December 31, 2022, and the Nomination of Ryan Richard for Appointment to the Seat with a
Term Ending December 31, 2021 .......................................................................... Page 7 

d. Action Memorandum No. 19-091: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Richard Benedetto
and Kristy Thom Bernier for Appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission with Terms
Ending December 31, 2022 ................................................................................... Page 9 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. October 22, 2019, Special Meeting ......................................................................... Page 11 
b. October 22, 2019, Regular Meeting ........................................................................ Page 13 
c. October 5, 2019, Special Meeting .......................................................................... Page 17 

E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

F. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from 4 A’s Director of Development Petra Davis Regarding Support for a Needle

Exchange Program

G. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. City Clerk’s Report
3. Mayor’s Report .......................................................................................................... Page 19 
4. City Attorney’s Report

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Linda Combs 
Council Member Julie Berberich 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Jill Valerius 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

Page 1 of 34

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 26, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

H. NEW BUSINESS
1. Action Memorandum No. 19-087: Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City

Council’s Statement of Non-Objection to a New Winery Liquor License Application No. 5867 for
Matanuska Brewing Company, Located at 513 South Valley Way ................................... Page 21 

2. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2020 Budget (note: action may be taken by the
council following the committee of the whole)
a. 2020 City of Palmer Budget
b. 2020 City of Palmer Pay Plan
c. 2020 City of Palmer Fee Schedule
d. 2020 City of Palmer Fine Schedule
e. 2020 City of Palmer Capital Improvement Program

I. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

K. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person – City Clerk (Note:

action may be taken following the executive session)

M. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Dec 3 Special 6 pm Budget 

Dec 10 Special 6 pm Budget 

Dec 10 Regular 7 pm Budget Adoption (Public Hearing) 

Dec 24 Regular 7 pm 

Jan 14, ‘20 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-088 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-088 

Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Kenneth More, Shannon Jardine, and Christopher Shayne 
Reese for Appointment to the Airport Advisory Commission with Terms Ending December 31, 2022, and 
the Nomination of Leighton Lee for Appointment to the Seat with a Term Ending December 31, 2021 

Agenda of: November 26, 2019 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

X Airport 11/14/2019 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 2,400.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 2,400.00/year 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 03-01-10-6059 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 3 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-088 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 None

Summary Statement/Background: 

The Airport Advisory Commission (AAC) is a seven-member board with three seats expiring December 31, 
2019, and one vacant seat expiring December 31, 2021. 

Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, posted 
on the City Hall bulletin board, advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City 
of Palmer’s social media sites. 

Eight applications were received, as noted below. All applications were received prior to the final deadline 
of 4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 31. 

Applicants were: 

1. Lisa Albert-Konecky
2. Douglas Glenn
3. Shannon Jardine (currently serving)
4. Leighton Lee
5. Brian Lites
6. Kenneth More (currently serving)
7. Christopher Shayne Reese
8. James Schley

All applications met code requirements and were considered. After review, Shannon Jardine, Kenneth 
More, Leighton Lee, and Christopher Shayne Reese are nominated for appointment to fill the seats. 

Original applications are retained in the City Clerk’s Office.  Please call (907) 761-1301 to request a copy. 

Mayor’s Recommendation:  

To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-088. 

Page 4 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-089 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-089 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Peter Christopher and Janet Kincaid for Appointment to 
the Board of Economic Development with Terms Ending December 31, 2022, and the Nomination of 
Ronalee Moses for Appointment to the Seat with a Term Ending December 31, 2020 
 
Agenda of: November 26, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development   11-15-19 
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1,800.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 1,800.00/year 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-01-05-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 5 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-089 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Board of Economic Development (BED) is a seven-member board with two seats expiring December 
31, 2019, and one vacant seat expiring December 31, 2020. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, posted 
on the City Hall bulletin board, advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City 
of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
Five applications were received, as noted below. All applications were received prior to the final deadline 
of 4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 31. 
 
Applicants were: 
 

1. Imran Chaudhry 
2. Peter Christopher (currently serving) 
3. Janet Kincaid (currently serving) 
4. Ronalee Moses 
5. Ailis Vann 

 
All applications met code requirements and were considered. After review, Peter Christopher, Janet 
Kincaid, and Ronalee Moses are nominated for appointment to fill the seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Clerk’s Office.  Please call (907) 761-1301 to request a copy. 
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-089. 

Page 6 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-090 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-090 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Shannon Connelly and Marilyn Bennett for Appointment 
to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with Terms Ending December 31, 2022, and the Nomination 
of Ryan Richard for Appointment to the Seat with a Term Ending December 31, 2021 
 
Agenda of: November 26, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
√  Public Works    11/14/19 

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1,800.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 1,800.00/year 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-19-90-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 7 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-090 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) is a seven-member board with two seats expiring 
December 31, 2019, and one vacant seat expiring December 31, 2021. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, posted 
on the City Hall bulletin board, advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City 
of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
Eight applications were received, as noted below. All applications were received prior to the final deadline 
of 4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 31. 
 
Applicants were: 
 

1. Erin Aklestad 
2. Marilyn Bennett (currently serving) 
3. Imran Chaudhry 
4. Shannon Connelly (currently serving) 
5. Emily Forstner 
6. Lyssa Frohling 
7. Lee Henrikson 
8. Ryan Richard 

 
All applications met code requirements and were considered. After review, Marilyn Bennett, Shannon 
Connelly, and Ryan Richard are nominated for appointment to fill the seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Clerk’s Office.  Please call (907) 761-1301 to request a copy. 
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-090. 

Page 8 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-091 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-091 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Richard Benedetto and Kristy Thom Bernier for 
Appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission with Terms Ending December 31, 2022 
 
Agenda of: November 26, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor DeVries via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development 

 

 11-15-2019 
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1,200.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 1,200.00/year 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-01-12-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 9 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-091 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) is a seven-member board with two seats expiring December 
31, 2019. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, posted 
on the City Hall bulletin board, advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City 
of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
Five applications were received, as noted below. All applications were received prior to the final deadline 
of 4:00 p.m., Thursday, October 31. 
 
Applicants were: 
 

1. Richard Benedetto (currently serving) 
2. Kristy Thom Bernier (currently serving) 
3. Imran Chaudhry 
4. Lee Henrikson 
5. Kristan Ingersoll 

 
All applications met code requirements and were considered. After review, Richard Benedetto and Kristy 
Thom Bernier are nominated for reappointment to fill the seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Clerk’s Office.  Please call (907) 761-1301 to request a copy. 
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-091. 

Page 10 of 34



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 22, 2019, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
October 22, 2019 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on October 22, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor  
Julie Berberich 
Richard W. Best  
Steve Carrington 

Linda Combs, Deputy Mayor  
Sabrena Combs 
Jill Valerius 

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney 
Kara Johnson, Deputy City Clerk 

 
City Attorney Michael Gatti was absent. 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: S. Combs 

Seconded by: Berberich 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None. 
 
F. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Resolution No. 20-001:  Adopting the 2020 City of Palmer Employee Pay Plan (1st Public Hearing) 
2. Resolution No. 20-002:  Adopting the 2020 Fee Schedule for the City of Palmer for the Fiscal Year 

Beginning January 1, 2020, and Ending December 31, 2020 (1st Public Hearing) 
3. Resolution No. 20-003: Adopting the 2020 Fine Schedule for the City of Palmer for the Fiscal Year 

Beginning January 1, 2020, and Ending December 31, 2020 (1st Public Hearing) 
4. Resolution No. 20-004: Adopting the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program for the Fiscal Year 

Beginning January 1, 2020, and Ending December 31, 2020 (1st Public Hearing) 
5. Resolution No. 20-005: Adopting a Budget for the City of Palmer, Alaska for the Fiscal Year 

Beginning January 1, 2020, and Ending December 31, 2020, and Appropriating Monies (1st Public 
Hearing) 

Page 11 of 34



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 22, 2019, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

 
Mayor DeVries requested to combine the vote for practicality for Resolution No. 20-001, Resolution No. 20-
002, Resolution No. 20-003, Resolution No. 20-004, and Resolution No. 20-005. Hearing no objection from 
the Council, Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 20-001, Resolution No. 20-002, 
Resolution No. 20-003, Resolution No. 20-004, and Resolution No. 20-005. Seeing no one come forward to 
speak and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed by Mayor DeVries. 
 

 Main Motion:   To Approve Resolution No. 20-001, Resolution No. 20-002, Resolution No. 
20-003, Resolution No. 20-004, and Resolution No. 20-005 

Moved by: L. Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2020 Budget (note: action may be taken by the council 
following the committee of the whole) 
a. 2020 City of Palmer Budget 
b. 2020 City of Palmer Pay Plan 
c. 2020 City of Palmer Fee Schedule 
d. 2020 City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
e. 2020 City of Palmer Capital Improvement Program 

 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 6:06 p.m. 
 
Topics addressed in the Committee of the Whole included: 

• Manager’s Message; 
• Revenue; 
• Budget Meeting Presentation Schedule; and 
• Fielded questions from the Council. 

 
The Council adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 6:54 p.m. and reconvened the Special Meeting. 
 
H. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported the revenue and insurance report was the Item Placed on the Table. 
 
I. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
No direction given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 
 
Approved this ___ day of ____, 2019. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 12 of 34



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 22, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
October 22, 2019 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on October 22, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich 
Richard Best 
Steve Carrington 

Linda Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Sabrina Combs 
Jill Valerius 
 

 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney 
Kara Johnson, Deputy City Clerk 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Action Memorandum No. 19-073: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 

Professional Services Agreement with HDL Engineer Consultants for Engineering Services for the 
2020 ADA Sidewalk Improvements Project in an Amount not to Exceed $41, 310.00 

b. Action Memorandum No. 19-074: Authorizing the City Manager to Award and Execute a 
Contract with Eagle View Excavation in an Amount not to Exceed $75.00 per Hour for City Snow 
Haul Services 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. September 24, 2019, Special Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda, Consent Agenda, and Minutes 

Moved by: S. Combs 
Seconded by: Berberich 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 

 
1. Presentation from Golf Course Manager George Collum Regarding the Palmer Golf Course 

 
Mr. Collum highlighted his written report, the 2019 accomplishments, and 2020 goals. 
  

Page 13 of 34



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 22, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 

 
F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None. 
 
G. REPORTS 
 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Wallace highlighted his written report. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 
City Clerk Alley highlighted her written report and announced she would be attending a presentation of the 
new election equipment, upcoming Council events, and Boards and Commissions recruitment had begun. 
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor DeVries highlighted her written report and asked for Council to work with the city manager on putting 
together the ACoM auction gift for the AML Conference. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report 
 
None. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation on the Brownsfields Project from Stantec Consulting Services, 
Inc. Associate Wendy Van Duyne, PLA (note: action my be taken by the council following the 
committee of the whole) 

 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Ms. Van Duyne highlighted her written report and fielded questions about the preliminary findings. 
 
The Council adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 8:26 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting. 
 

2. Action Memorandum No. 19-075: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 
$400.00 to the Palmer High School to Support Alaska Association Student Government Conference 
Field Trip to Palmer November 2, 2019 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 19-075 

Moved by: S. Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
  

Page 14 of 34



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 22, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 

 
3. Action Memorandum No. 19-076: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 

$225.00 to the Alaska Farmland Trust to Support the Fall Harvest Festival at the Palmer Depot on 
November 3, 2019 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 19-076 

Moved by: L. Combs 
Seconded by: S. Combs 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
I. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported there were no Items Placed on the Table. 
 
J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski testified on city communication through Facebook and the website. 
 
Ms. Stephanie Nowers spoke to the need to specify the expected topic for the upcoming Stantec Open House. 
 
Mr. Stu Graham, Alaska Municipal League (AML) 1st Vice President, addressed recent AML matters. 
 
Mr. Tim Rocky spoke about the upcoming Alaska Association Student Government Conference at the Palmer 
High School. 
 
K. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
No direction given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 
 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 15 of 34



Page 16 of 34



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: January 9, 2019, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Special Meeting 
November 5, 2019 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on November 5, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Julie Berberich  
Richard W. Best 
Steve Carrington (arrived at 6:19 p.m.) 

Linda Combs, Deputy Mayor  
Sabrena Combs 
Jill Valerius

 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

Nathan Wallace, City Manager 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: Linda Combs 

Seconded by: Jill Valerius 
Vote: 6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent (Carrington) 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
None. 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2020 Budget (note: action may be taken by the council 
following the committee of the whole) 
a. 2020 City of Palmer Budget 
b. 2020 City of Palmer Pay Plan 
c. 2020 City of Palmer Fee Schedule 
d. 2020 City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
e. 2020 City of Palmer Capital Improvement Program 

 
The Council entered into a Committee of the Whole at 6:03 p.m. 
 
Topics addressed in the Committee of the Whole included: 

• Insurance Update; 

Page 17 of 34



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 5, 2019, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

• Police Department; 
• Fire Department;  
• Public Works Department; 
• Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund; 
• Land Enterprise Fund; 
• Solid Waste Enterprise Fund; and 
• Community Development. 

 
City Manager Wallace announced:  

• Final insurance numbers came in one percent less, which puts $50,252.00 into surplus. If Council 
chooses to not pass the increase onto the employees, the surplus would be $42,552.00;  

• The current health care trust the city is participating in may dissolve, so the  human resources 
specialist was developing a request for proposal with anticipation it would be brought before the 
Council the first part of January; and  

• Sales tax collections are above projections by $16,000.00, which makes the expected 2019 ending 
fund balance $250,000.00. 

 
Mayor called a recess at 7:31 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Council Member Best and Deputy Mayor L. Combs requested a report for the Depot’s expansion for cold 
storage on the North end of the building. 
 
The Council adjourned from Committee of the Whole at 8:36 p.m. and reconvened the regular meeting. 
 
G. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
None. 
 
H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
No direction given to staff for legislation to be placed on a future agenda. 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:41 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 18 of 34



           Mayor’s Memo 

 
Council Meeting report for council Meeting  

on November 26, 2019 

 

We are still working City’s budget for 2020. 

      
HAPPY THANKSGIVING NOVEMBER 28 

SMALL SHOP SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 30 

ADGENDA 12/12 

COLONY CHRISTMAS 12/13-15 

MAYOR/MANAGER 12/19 

RADIO FREE PALMER 12/20 

 

LEGISLATIVE TOWN HALL 1/4/20 – WASILLA SENIOR 
CENTER  

 

We want and value your input and participation. 
 

Edna DeVries  Mayor 
907-355-9933       edevries@palmerak.org 

Page 19 of 34



Page 20 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-087 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 19-087 

 
Subject:  Directing the City Clerk to Notify the State of Alaska of the City Council’s Statement of Non-
Objection to a New Winery Liquor License Application No. 5867 for Matanuska Brewing Company, Located 
at 513 South Valley Way 
 
Agenda of: November 26, 2019 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Norma Alley, City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ Unknown 
 

This legislation (√): 
√ Creates revenue in the amount of: $ Unknown 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 21 of 34



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 19-087 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 Notice for License No. 5867 
 Application 
 Premises Diagram 
 Review Form 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Matanuska Brewing Company has applied for a new winery application. State law requires local governing 
bodies (per AS 04.21.080, this is defined as the City Council) to review requests pertaining to liquor 
licenses within their municipalities. The City may voice a non-objection or may file a protest to a request. 
 
As of the date of packet publication, the City Clerk’s Office had not received any written comments or 
phone calls from the public expressing concern or support for this application. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 19-087. 

Page 22 of 34



 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Main: 907.269.0350

 
October 28, 2019 
 
City of Palmer 
Attn:  City Clerk  
VIA Email: cityclerk@palmerak.org    
 

License Type: Winery License Number: 5867 

Licensee: Matanuska Brewing Company, LLC 

Doing Business As: Matanuska Brewing Company 

Premises Address: 513 South Valley Way 

  

☒ New Application ☐ Transfer of Ownership Application  

☐ Transfer of Location Application ☐ Transfer of Controlling Interest Application 
                     
We have received a completed application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable. To protest the application referenced above, please submit your protest 
within 60 days and show proof of service upon the applicant. 
 
AS 04.11.491 – AS 04.11.509 provide that the board will deny a license application if the board finds that 
the license is prohibited under as a result of an election conducted under AS 04.11.507. 
 
AS 04.11.420 provides that the board will not issue a license when a local governing body protests an 
application on the grounds that the applicant’s proposed licensed premises are located in a place within 
the local government where a local zoning ordinance prohibits the alcohol establishment, unless the 
local government has approved a variance from the local ordinance. 
  
Sincerely, 

 
Erika McConnell, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  

Page 23 of 34

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Page 24 of 34



Page 25 of 34



Page 26 of 34



Page 27 of 34



Page 28 of 34



Page 29 of 34



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

Form AB-02: Premises Diagram 

What is this form? 

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office 
550 W 7'h Avenue, Suite 1600 

Anchorage, AK 99501 
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco 
Phone: 907.269.0350 

A detailed diagram of the proposed licensed premises is required for all liquor license applications, per AS 04.11.260 and 

3 AAC 304.185. Your diagram must include dimensions and must show all entrances and boundaries of the premises, walls, bars, 

fixtures, and areas of storage, service, consumption, and manufacturing. If your proposed premises is located within a building or 

building complex that contains multiple businesses and/or tenants, please provide an additional page that clearly shows the 

location of your proposed premises within the building or building complex, along with the addresses and/or suite numbers of the 

other businesses and/or tenants within the building or building complex. 

The second page of this form is not required. Blueprints, CAD drawings, or other clearly drawn and marked diagrams may be 
submitted in lieu of the second page of this form. The first page must still be completed, attached to, and submitted with any 

supplemental diagrams. An AMCO employee may require you to complete the second page of this form if additional documentation 

for your premises diagram is needed. 

This form must be completed and submitted to AMCO's main office before any license application will be considered complete. 

I have attached blueprints, CAD drawings, or other supporting documents in addition to, or in lieu of, the second 

page of this form. 

Section 1 - Establishment Information 

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed, as identified on the license application. 

Licensee: Matanuska Brewing Company, LLC j License Number: j 
License Type: Winery 

Doing Business As: Matanuska Brewing Company 

Premises Address: 513 South Valley Way 

City: Palmer I State: jAK I ZIP: 

Yes No 

EJ□ 

j99645 

[Form AB-02] (rev 06/24/2016) 
AM· 

OCT 1 4 ?01 

Page 1 of2 

Page 30 of 34



) 

lfO
\ �

! 
'.ii

 

�
-:

 ·-

. 
ffi-D

 ....
 MAL

T 
ST

ORA
GE

2&:
-
i,
 

• 
w:

 

f
 v
 -=

--
,=-

e
;t
/J'Jtf?

nre
/c 

_ 
12.

 o 
hf

, 1

tr
:... 

iJ,-:t
Lt

t9f
r

 
r/.l

�
K.

 
t-z.

() 
!J£

1

fr
r
 -::

. 
/I-

G
IN

(; 
fA

,v
(<_

 1
--Z

v
,i

l 

Y
,

---
Y
t;>,

?,
 r

 
r/.J

;
v )t,

:l
, 
.,
. 

•
.

.
 1.:

•
· 

! i.
 

vJ
,.)

·; ___
 :: t

:· ·
·. 

�20.
·-

o�
: 

.:
 · ..

. : 
.. -
J

o·t
o•

··--..
., ....

.. -
:20

�-
o·

 
. .

. 

.• 

1•_:..
 , ..

 
K
E
G
G
IN

G
 
LI

N
E
 

C
O
LD

 
R
OO

M
 

I
. 

M°A-
tA

�
/1-

/!,/e
w

w
 G

 c'
O

, 
S-

\ 
3

 
!:

0v
'r

l1
 V

it
t.-L--

�-
'-'(

 
W

"'
"'\

 

r
ll-

t..�
e,t_

 
A

k.
 

I
 

1'
 

•
 

• 
• •

 
••

 

;: 
.

..
.
.. 

. 

Page 31 of 34



I 
I D8ECE

 P
ARK

 

I
I 

I 
p�

 PUBLI
C 

SAFETY
 F

ACILITY
 

I 
SUSI)

. 
. 

. 
I 

I
PlA

T
0-

31111
 

, 

I 
I-I 

L
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
J+

, L
 
-

ll
 

. 
E

A
S

T
 

DOGVCllD
 

A
V

E
N

U
E

 
iii

 
· 

-}I
 

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
< S89

"5
9'30'

V
> 

-
-

-
-

. 
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
iii.-

-
-

-
· ;._

-:;
 _

_
 _

15'
 1DB'III£

 &
 aa:r.:

 -
�

 -
1RACT

 A
-

1
 

•.
 

131
,7

61
 sr

 
I ...

 �i
�r- 1 I 

!!!!!!:!
 

I.K
INI

 
DIIB:Dt.

 I 
AlASKA

IS
 

.-.
,.

AIR
 1tE

 sr
�

�
 

�
 

� 

---=
�

--,-
-

-
--

• 
I�

 

I 
'-�--

-----6
□ 

· 
:I r· 

T- - -
· LOT

 
A 

·-
---

··-
--� DA

1E
 

PIA
TN0.

 '9--
211

 

�!
,,

�/
 

c:i
 

.-
:a

 

........
 _

_
_

 .......
.....

 _
_

_
 *•

� ..
 � ....

.. ,
,,,

,,
,,,

, ...
. ......J.++

�
 • •

 • •
 • •

 • • •
 • •

 • 
I

□
r 

--
--

--
z:

31,6.48'
 _

__
 · . 

__
 _J

�
�-1

 
I 

. 
I 

ll
'TBUII

-
■

 E
LIC

TalC
 �

 
I�

 
IE 

I 
IIX

 

!It;
 

I !
-

NOT
ARY'S

 I
 

SU8SCIIIED
 • 

CF
�

 

O!
 
!:J I

 
? 
I 1

,,.,
 

I 

I 
LI 

I
i!

 , ..
 

a
�
 

� /
 
I

I
lallCl'

lt-
1 

.c
 

ii
�

 
·
o

T
 IIA

T
AMJSKA

 

Q
lY

OF'
 
P

AUER
 

I
V

AUEY
 

SPan'SUAN
 

SIR\£'(
 

I
1R

. 
NO.

 1
 

PlA
T HD.

 --
111111

 

�
 

D.851
 AC.

 
I s

I a 
· 

• 
1RACT

 B
-1

 
I 

q
 

!:I
.._

 _
_

_
_

 __.
 D

 
37

.191
 SF"

 
c 

J 
I 

�•
ii!:

 
-

�
-

-
� !

 
I i

 
VES

T
 

24
6.98"

 
1'.:1

 ,� 

�
·=

� 
! 

lRACT
B

-2
 

2.509
 AC.

 
109

.255
 sr

 
'� 

I 
I

I�
 

!'
" 

I 

LOT
 B-

1 
1'1.A

TNO.
 84-

ICJS
 

l'IIUD
 -

IZ
-t

ae
 

I 
. 

I 
L

(
4

11:J.U!j
')

 
�

 
YI

 
-

-
m.-

--
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

• < VE.,;;;;
ST;.. >;....

 _
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
__

_
 .,__

!B
 

1 

--
" 

·-_J_
 _ 

-
·-

D
A

H
L
I
A

 
A

V
E

MJE
 

,- I I 

7
 

1\/EY
SUR\'EY

 
I

TR
. A

 
Pl

A
T
 NO.

 
75-

1
 

I 
CER

1IFI
CA

1E
 Of

 P
AYMENT

 OF"
 T

A>CES
 

I IIEIIEl'I'
 CER1IFY

 li
W

 Ml,_
CURIElfl"

 TAln.
 NII

 SPEQ
AL

 
�

 11111UN
�

•C«
 a,

 . 
111!1!

, -
.......

 
�

lY
. INCLIJl)l

n
.,

 ,....
 -

M
AT

ANUSKA
-SUSI

TN
A 

B0ROUGH
 

PLAN
NING

 DIRE
CTOR

'S
 �

TE
 

I 
CERTIFY

 1N
&T

 -
-

-
-

· 

7
 I I I 

SIREOR'S
�

I IIJl£II'(
 CER1IF

 

I
-

IJCDIIED
 11

 
ffl

1E
 f1F

 IUlllC
 

SIIMY
IIME

ln
 

'ltlA
T 1tE

 11C1N1a
 

AS
naataD,

A
 

• DETM.S
 ARE

 Cllll
 

,.
,(

i/!M
 

IIA
'lt

 

'2
�

 

Page 32 of 34



1 
 

City of Palmer ● Liquor License Review Form   
 

BUSINESS NAME: Matanuska Brewing Company OWNER: Matanuska Brewing Company 
 

LICENSE TYPE: Winery 
 

LOCATION: 513 S. Valley Way 
 

 
Route to:  Department of Finance 
 

Department of Finance 
Sales Tax Current:   √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Utilities Current:   √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Special Assessments Current:    Yes  No     
 

If no, explain: Not applicable 
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 
 

November 4, 2019 
Finance Director  Date 

 
Route to: Department of Community Development 
 

Department of Community Development 
Code Compliant:   √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Fire Compliant (Plans Review):  Yes  No 
 

If no, explain: Not Applicable 
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
  November 5, 2019 
Community Development Director  Date 

 
 

Page 33 of 34



2 
 

Route to: Police Department 
 

Police Department 
Code Compliant:   √ Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 

11-5-19 
Chief of Police  Date 

 
Route to: City Manager’s Office 
 

City Manager’s Office 
Citizen Comments:    Yes X No 
 

If yes, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

 

 

11/5/19 
City Manager  Date 

                                                
Route to:  City Clerk’s Office 
 

City Clerk ’s Office 
Citizen Comments:    Yes X No 
 

If yes, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
  November 5, 2019 
City Clerk  Date 

 
FORWARD TO COUNCIL FOR AGENDA OF:  November 26, 2019 
 

Page 34 of 34



Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Audience Participation
Description: packet on Syringe 
Services



Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Audience Participation
Description: packet on Syringe Services



Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Audience Participation
Description: packet on Syringe 
Services



Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Audience Participation
Description: packet on Syringe Services



Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Audience Participation
Description: packet on Syringe Services



Angela Dunn, Hispanic Case Manager 

Byron Kim, HIV Prevention Harm 

Reduction Specialist 

Douglas Echternacht, HIV Prevention 

Harm Reduction Specialist 

Franci Viens, Ryan White/ADAP Specialist 

Jaclyn La Buen, Case Manager 

Jacob Hale, Finance Director 

Kathrin McCarthy, Southeast HIV Prevention Specialist 

Kim Stultz, Director of Client Resources 

Martina Diamond, Southeast Case Manager 

Petra Davis, Director of Development 

Quianna Mainer, Administrative Assistant 

Rachel Morse, Interim E><ecutive Director 

Sonny Fabiano, Case Manger 

Tami Wagner-Loomis, Case Manager 

Venus Woods, Director of HIV Prevention and Education 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Kyle Griffiths, President 

Hope McGratty, Vice President 

Nick Whitmore, Treasurer 

Viola Smith, Secretary 

Candace Bell 

David Butts 

David Hannon 

Melissa Griffiths 

Richard Miller 

SOUTHEAST ADVISORY BOARD 
Claire Geldhof 

Curtis Christensen 

Melissa Griffiths 

Owen Hutchinson 

Pick.C!!ck.Give. 

Thank you to everyone who Picked, 
Clicked, and Gave a portion of their 
PFDs to Four A's in 2019. Thanks to 
your generosity, Four A's received a 
total of $7,775. When you file for your 
PFD in 2019, please consider donating 
through Pick.Click.Give to the Alaskan 
AIDS Assistance Association. 

PHOTOGRAPHY BY 
Photos courtesy of Jason DeHeus 

COMMUNITY IMPACT REPORT DESIGNED BY 
Turning Heads Designs 
www.turningheadsdesigns.com 

2019 
COMMUNITY 

IMPACT 

REPORT 

A�SKQs\sI!�s 

u

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019

Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker Description: 
2019 Community Impact Report



DEAR FOUR A'S FAMILY, 

The fight against HIV and AIDS takes passion, perseverance, science and hope_ We are 
grateful for the Four A's community of donors, volunteers, clients and staff th.at make our 
work possible. In 2019, Four A's has evolved into a stronger and more connected service 
organization focused on our core purpose: support, empower, prevent. The future we envision 
for Four A's has our organization, with your engagement and support, on the Leading edge of 
treatment for HIV/AIDS with a solid focus on prevention. 

What a time to lean fully into our mission. HIV treatments continue to improve as medications 
become more durable, safer and many individuals experience significantly fevver side effects. 
Research for a functional cure for HIV/AIDS continues to make progress. On trae national 
scale, significant efforts have been invested to normalize preventative measlllrres like, regular 
condom use and utilizing preventative medications (PrEP). Additionally, very public and 
recognizable voices have shared their HIV positive status and stories in efforts to help fight 
the stigma of HIV that continues to prevent people from accessing healthcare and treatment. 
Today, Four A's leans fully into our mission to ensure that every person affected by HIV/AIDS 
in Alaska has the opportunity to live their best and fullest life. 

Still, much work remains. Four A's continues to provide vital services for some of the most 
vulnerable Alakans. We also continue to work on ourselves with stronger acco untabilit_y, 
deeper commitments to true partnerships, and honest evaluations of the way we work and 
show up for work. The upcoming year promises still more change, further expansions of 
service in Southeast Alaska, l<enai and the Mat-Su borough. With your support, we plan to 
fully invest in testing, prevention and care as the multi-phase approach that will end the 
spread of HIV and AIDS in our lifetime. 

This annual report is a testament to what is possible with a community like ours. Thank you. 

KYLE GRIFFITHS 
Board President 
(Left} 

RACHEL MORSE 
Interim Ei<ecutive Director 
(Right) 

THANK YOU 

FOR YOUR 

GENEROSITY 

AND SUPPORT 

Sonny Fabiano, Case Manager 2 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker 
Description: 2019 Community 
Impact Report



CLIENT RESOURCES 
Client Resources remains at the core of Four A's mission. While 

today we are fortunate to be managing a chronic illness as compared 
to a terminal condition; it remains the core of our work to support 

and empower individuals living with and affected by HIV/AIDS. Our 
experienced Case Managers work with clients every day to understand 

how health care decisions can affect the treatment of HIV/Al DS, what 
resources are available, and how to access much needed supportive services. 

� 
Case Managers attend a variety of doctor's appointments, housing placement 

� meetings, supportive services appointments, and many others in order to help 
"-

<:;
/,<:S" clients fully understand what is being said, to be an advocate for them, and to let them 

(\e,\0 know that they are not fighting this disease on their own. 
�(\'? 

Currently, five Case Managers work to support and empower our clients living with and affected 
by HIV/AIDS. Most importantly, Case Managers are working with clients to help them realize, 
while an individual client is HIV positive that is not an indication that they can't live a happy 
healthy life. Clients are encouraged to realize that; they are not HIV/AIDS but have HIV/AIDS. 
Today, HIV is no longer considered a disability. Clients are becoming undetectable in their 
viral loads; at undetectable, HIV cannot be sexually transmitted. This progress has allowed HIV 
positive persons to sustain healthy relationships and empowers our Case Managers and our 
clients to talk openly about healthy sexual behaviors/practices. Currently, 79% of Four A's HIV 
positive clients have reached and/or sustain an undetectable viral load. 

With the assistance of our dedicated Case Managers, 33 clients-maintained housing under 
the two housing programs provided. Additionally, 16 clients experiencing homelessness 
were placed into stable housing, and 63 clients were provided housing assistance to 
prevent homelessness. 

The direct support the Case Managers provided to the clients, gives them the tools they need 
to be successful in the community. The five Case Managers and ADAP coordinator come to work 
every day to make it a better place for each existing client and future new clients who walk 
through the doors. All the work the client resources program does is not successful without 
the relationship and partnership of pharmacies and medical offices throughout the state. It is 
through the communication with the doctors and that pharmacy, the Case Managers and ADAP 
coordinator can provide the best care for the client. This work is also not possible without 
the dedication and support of our generous community partners/donors. 
You make a difference, every day. 

CLIENT DEMOGRAPHICS 
BY# OF CLIENTS 

GENDER 

AGE 

J104 

HIV RISK FACTORS 

Female 

Transgender 

0-12

13-24

25-44

45-64

65 and older

Hispanic 

Non-Hispanic 

I Hemophilia 

Heterosexual Contact 

Injection Drug Use 

MSM 

Perinatal 

Transfusion 

MSM &IDU 

Unknown/Other 

RAGE 

HIV STATUS 

HOUSING 

Al< Native/Native American 

Asian 

African American/Black 

Caucasian 

More than One/Other 

Pacific Islander 

Not Specified 

HIV-Positive (not AIDS) 

CDC-Defined AIDS

HIV-Positive 
(AIDS status unknown) 

In Housing 
Housing Assistance to 
Prevent Homelessness 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker 
Description: 2019 Community 
Impact Report



HIV 

PREVENTION 

Four A's believes that empowering individuals with 

education and choice is the key to helping limit 

risks, reduce harm, and eliminate stigma. While there 

is still a great amount of work to be done, it is through 

education and greater understanding that we will come 

to see a healthier community. Four A's continues to lead 

HIV prevention efforts throughout Alaskan communities 

such as: rapid HIV and Hepatitis C testing, statewide condom 

distribution, HIV prevention/education outreach and operation of 

the Four A's Syringe Access Program (FASAP). 

It is successes like the testing of over 90 individuals at Anchorage's Pride Fest 

that bring us satisfaction in knowing that not only are individuals seeking safer sex 

practices but that the stigma and fear of testing is being slowly diminished. Thanks to an 

increased prevention staff we've been able to increase testing opportunities at Mad Myrna's', 

Identity Inc, the Raven, and Pride Fest events across Alaska, such as Seward Pride. We have 

also been actively partnering with the State of Alaska and Anchorage Health Department to 

perform targeted HIV/HCV and syphilis testing throughout southcentral Alaska. This year we 

have significantly invested in expanding testing and outreach/education services in Juneau and 

throughout southeast Alaska. Over the coming year we will continue to increase our testing/ 

education efforts in southeast. 

Over the past two years we have also focused on the expansion of our syringe access program; 

this year we continued that expansion by partnering with service providers throughout 

southcentral Alaska. Four A's Syringe Access Program continues to be a crucial public health 

tool for reducing new HIV and Hepatitis C infections. Through FASAP individuals can get free 

HIV and Hepatitis C testing, syringe exchange and supplies for safe injection, risk reduction 

education, referrals and NARCAN. We continue to learn about better ways to serve our Alaskan 

communities and are thankful for the many program partners, government agencies, and 

individuals that support the Four A's Syringe Access Program. 

As we look forward to the next year Four A's is excitedly preparing for continued growth in 

prevention and education efforts. We believe eliminating the HIV virus will largely come 

from increased education/prevention programming encapsulated in a variety of community 

partnerships. We look forward to greater engagement and partnerships that will move Alaska 

closer to eliminating the HIV virus. We look forward to working with you. 

In FY19 

TOTAL NUMBER OF 
Rapid HIV tests given > 915 (Anchorage and Juneau) 

Rapid HCV tests given > 717 (Anchorage and Juneau) 

Sterile syringes given > 980,925 (Anchorage and Juneau)

Used syringes returned > 987,304 (Anchorage and Juneau)

Condoms distributed > 62,000+ (Statewide) 

"Staff really care about you here; you don't get that 

much as an addict. That's one thing that makes Four 

A's so special, they really care." 

- Four A's Prevention Client

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019

Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker
Description: 2019 Community Impact 
Report



7 

FINANCIAL 

STATS 

REVENUE COMPARISON 

,··FY19 $1,815,406 

FY18 $1,657,002 

FY17 $1,832,438 

REVENUE SOURCES 

FY17 

grants 1,573,271 

earned income 60,220 

direct giving 162,818 

other 18,555 

in-kind 17,344 

total 1,832,208 

FY18 

1,371,890 

37,460 

200,009 

19,341 

28,302 

1,657,002 

''Financials for FY19 are unaudited and subject to change. 

FY19 EXPENSES 

$1,360,792 

% 
$261,185 

% 
$210,914 

% 
$98,056 

FY19 

1,623,129 

32,829 

137,118 

7,973 

14,357 

1,815,406 

THANK YOU! 
The stories of success and encouragement in 
these pages are possible because of you. These 
include the client that celebrated achieving an 
undetectable status, the young man that got tested 
for the first time at Pride Fest, the young girl that came 
to the exchange for the first time. These stories and 
greater yet, these essential services, only happen because 
you continue to stand with Four A's. 

Though a substantial amount of funding for Four A's work comes from 
federally allocated sources granted through the State of Alaska, donor ,,.o.,,,,. 45 
support plays a critical role in providing a portion of the wrap around care and Cose M

a nager harm reduction not covered by these restricted programs. This year, your support was 5 

critical for Four A's ability to weather the uncertainty of state budget cuts and governor vetoes 
that delayed the grant award timeline of our federally sourced funding. We continue to monitor the 
impacts of significant reductions in services for the most vulnerable Alaskans and prepare for what 
is expected to be another tumultuous start to the next fiscal year with more cuts, vetoes and delays. 
Your support helps us continue services, expand opportunities and build resiliency in the face 
of change. 

This year, you made possible our e><panded partnership with the State of Alaska Department 
of Health and Human Services and the Anchorage Health Department for testing and critical 
engagement of high-risk housing insecure individuals. While we are fortunate that, to date, none 
of these tests have yielded a positive HIV results, many individuals have been linked to critical care 
for positive syphilis results and more individuals are linked to supportive services. You have also 
made possible our renewed focus on client centered care. As the treatment of HIV has changed, 
we continue to readdress how we best serve our neighbors living with HIV/AIDS. Today, Four 
A's commits to not simply treating the disease and disease spread but to embracing the whole 
individual by supporting each client's efforts to live a complete and fulfilling life. Your support has 
also enabled Four A's to significantly readdress our work and how we achieve that work in southeast, 
Alaska. We continue to engage with our dedicated southeast advisory board in addressing how we 
can accomplish and excel at serving the southeast region. 

As we look forward to the year and years to come Four A's remains deeply vested in the highest 
quality of care for our clients living with and affected by HIV/AIDS and looks to be continually 
advancing our approach to preventative services. Know that every day we hold you with us as 
we strive for better care, comfort and hope for all persons served. It is with passion, 
perseverance, science, hope, and you that we will see the end of HIV 
around the world and right here in Alaska. Thank you. 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker
Description: 2019 Community Impact Report



9 

CLIENT STORIES & 0UOTES 

James had not been to Four A's Syringe Access Program (FASAP) in several 

months and one day came back in. He looked much healthier, cleaner, and was practically 

unrecognizable compared to how he looked previously. The James that came in to 

Four A's was a different person! James had been through an ordeal the last 

few months and came out the other side a "better person and my old 

self". James explains to Four A's staff that he had been arrested 

during a sting operation; wrong place, wrong time. He spent 

a few months in jail where he went through detox and 

withdrawal from his heroin addiction. Once released, 

he found help from other organizations and vowed 

to himself and his family to never use again. One 

month later and James was still in recovery. His 

primary reason for coming to Four A's that 

day was to thank staff for the services we 

provided and because he missed staff's 

inviting smiles. 

Annie, a long-time HIV positive client of the Four A's, who 

has struggled with substance misuse and domestic abuse, 

has found stability with the support of Four A's and partner 

agencies like AWAIC and RurAL CAP. Annie worked with Four A's 

case management team to find safe housing through the 

Four A's rental assistance program. She is now working to 

maintain sobriety, taking computer classes to improve job skills, 

has an improved outlook and positive feelings about the future; 

Annie is ecstatic to be exploring options to return to work. 

"I know so much more now! I feel 

like after testing I can be a better/ 

safer partner and a better community 

advocate. Everyone should get tested!" 

- l<atie, first time HIV Testing

Participant, Anchorage Pride fest

"Four A's is somewhere I feel safe. 

Safe from stigma, discrimination, 

harassment. Without Four A's I 

wouldn't have anywhere to go. 

We're lucky to have this program." 

- Four A's Prevention Client

Tina & Mary are a gay couple, that for many years kept their relationship a secret from 

friends, family, and the whole world. Tina couched surfed with family and friends. Mary came 

into the Four A's program and obtained housing. As time went one, with the support of case 

management and Four A's staff, Tina and Mary came out as a couple together. They were wed 

and shared the exciting news with all the staff at Four A's who celebrated with them. Mary's 

living situation turned sour and the landlord appeared to target her. Fortunately, a long-

time donor to the Four A's had an apartment come open. He generously offered it 

to a Four A's client. Tina & Mary are now living openly as a married couple 

and enjoying life. 

raQuicl<?� 
NC£• lfWl!ID. 

___ .... 

10 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker 
Description: 2019 Community 
Impact Report



Venus Woods 
Director or HIV Prevention & Education

1057 W Fireweed Lane, Suite 102 Anchorage, Alaska 99503
907-263-2048 d
907-263-2051 f
vwoods@alaskanaids.org

----

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date: 11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Agenda Speaker
Description: 2019 Community 
Impact Report



Mayor/Council/City Clerk – Budget Stats 
Statistics of Services 

Indicators: 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
2019 
(as of 
11/26) 

Action Items before Council 
(Ordinances/Resolutions/AMs) 143 177 182 152 134 126 118 

Average Council Meeting Length 
(in hours) 

Not 
Avail. 2.06 1.83 1.93 2.19 1.77 1.38 

Number of Council Meetings 45 46 51 43 37 32 28 
Number of Board and Commission 
Meetings 
*PRAB started meeting in 2015

36 29 35* 46 42 39 36 

Records Requests 
(Traceable through Recorder’s Office) 

Not 
Avail. 83 86 91 119 78 128 

Records Destruction 
(in cubic square feet) 105 30 55 41 102 109 101 

Election Statistics 
Indicators: 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Voter Turnout Percentage 22% 19% 13% 15% 23% 13% 16% 11% 
Number of Ballots Issued 760 656 434 638 985 565 795 555 
Mayor No Yes No No Yes No No Yes 
Ballot Propositions 1 0 2 1 1 0 0 1 

Radio Statistics – Audio Only 
Year Accesses Visitors 
2016 923 188 
2017 2321 179 
2018 1537 312 
2019 402 109 

Total Hits: 5183 788 
Average Hits: 1296 197 

Accesses = Number of hits on a link 
Visitors = Number of hits for live stream 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Clerk's Report 
Speaker Description: Budget Stats



1 

To: Norma Alley, Palmer City Clerk  
From: Mike Chmielewski, Radio Free Palmer 
Re: 2019 Streaming Report  
Date: November 15, 2019 

Radio Free Palmer has provided live audio streaming services of regular Palmer Council Meetings 
since March 11, 2014. Listeners can go to our website to listen to the stream in real time. 

Additionally, we record the meetings, edit them to improve audio quality, and post the recordings to 
our website. These recordings are all available in our site archives. The audio can be listened to 
online or downloaded as a podcast. 

In early 2018 we added a video component to our streaming service. Each regular meeting was 
live streamed and the video is available on a landing page, as well as on YouTube. The video has 
an accompanying agenda keyed to the video for easy access to specific agenda item coverage. All 
videos remain available in the archives on the landing page.  

The City of Palmer and the MEA Charitable Foundation provided funding for the first year. We did 
not have the resources to continue to fund the service. In March of 2019 we began negotiations 
with the non-profit software provider to continue use of their system to provide an agenda keyed 
reference. However, the provider has agreed to our continued use of the software without 
payment. We will continue to provide the video along with our streamed and recorded audio. 

Note on listener statistics. Our streaming service has complete data about the individuals listening 
to a meeting stream. We find unique visitors and accesses for each to be the most useful data and 
that is what we are providing.  Data for short, random hits is not counted in this report. 

We also know that media representatives listen to both the live stream and recordings for their 
articles.  

In addition to the live stream, listeners access the radiofreepalmer.org archives to stream or 
download any meeting from March 2014 to the present. During the past year there were 233 
pageviews of the recordings for Council meetings on our web page radiofreepalmer.org.  

Number of streamed meetings with audio recordings for the years 2015-2019. 

2015 22 meetings 
2016 18 meetings 
2017 23 meetings 
2018 22 meetings 
2019 21 meetings (through 10/22/19) 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Clerk's Report 
Speaker Description: Budget Stats



2 

Live Audio Stream Data 2017 - 2019 

2017 2018 2019 through Oct. 22 

Date Accesses Visitors Date Accesses Visitors Date Accesses Visitors 

1/10/17 85 19 1/9/18 20 2 1/8/19 8 3 

1/24/17 28 15 1/23/18 10 2 1/22/19 4 1 

2/14/17 3 2 2/13/18 6 3 2/12/19 13 3 

2/28/17 3 3 2/27/18 29 9 2/26/19 55 20 

3/14/17 6 3 3/13/18 7 4 3/12/19 7 4 

3/28/17 4 3 3/27/18 36 5 3/26/19 9 3 

4/11/17 6 3 4/10/18 4 1 4/9/19 12 4 

4/25/17 3 2 4/24/18 182 24 4/23/19 No data No data 

5/9/17 23 2 5/8/18 No data No data 5/14/19 10 3 

5/23/17 3 3 5/22/18 24 4 5/28/19 34 11 

6/13/17 1 1 6/12/18 3 2 6/11/19 33 7 

6/27/17 2 2 6/26/18 4 4 6/25/19 21 5 

7/11/17 2 2 7/10/18 4 1 7/9/19 2 1 

7/25/17 3 2 7/24/18 4 1 7/23/19 34 7 

8/6/19* 117 21 

8/8/17 4 2 8/14/18 1 1 8/13/19 5 2 

8/22/17 3 2 8/28/18 1 1 8/27/19 3 3 

9/12/17 2 2 9/11/18 13 5 9/10/19 16 5 

9/26/17 48 39 9/25/18 27 5 9/24/19 3 1 

10/10/17 7 6 10/9/18 8 2 10/8/19 3 2 

10/24/17 6 5 10/23/18 35 8 10/22/19 13 3 

11/14/17 No data No data 

Item Placed on the Table
Meeting Date:11/26/2019
Agenda Item: Clerk's 
Report Speaker 
Description: Budget Stats




	Agenda
	AM 19-088 AAC Appt
	AM 19-089 BED Appt
	AM 19-090 PRAB Appt
	AM 19-091 PZC Appt
	Minutes Special
	Minutes
	2019-1105 Council Minutes Special
	Mayor's Report
	AM 19-087 Liquor License - Matanuska Brewing 5867 
	Meeting Handouts



